
 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  
 

November 20th, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 
  

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 
November 20th, 2024, at 1:00-3:30pm   

 
Meeting called by:  Port of Kingston Commissioners 

                               Type of meeting:       Regular Meeting 
                               Location:        Hybrid 

 
 

A. In Person:     
Village Green Community Center  

26159 Dulay Rd NE 

Kingston, WA 98346 

 

 

B. Virtual via Zoom:   
Join Zoom Meeting 

   https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82157809065 

 Meeting ID: 821 5780 9065  
      Dial by your location 
         1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

 

Welcome to the November 20th, 2024, Regular Meeting of the Port of Kingston Commission. 

Comments from those in attendance will be allowed upon recognition of the Chair. Please 

identify yourself by stating your name.  We would like to remind everyone that while we greatly 

value your input, the Commissioners will not be responding to questions and comments during 

our Regular Session meetings. This practice ensures the meetings run efficiently and within the 

scheduled agenda. The Executive Director or a Commissioner will follow up with you after the 

meeting. Thank you for your understanding and continued participation.  

If you would like to be added to the agenda for a future meeting, please contact the Port Office 

at least one week prior to the regularly scheduled meeting. Please submit your documents 

and/or presentations at the time of your request. 

This is a preliminary agenda and is subject to change. 

 
Agenda Topics 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82157809065


 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  
 

November 20th, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 
  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT  
Citizens may address the Commission regarding any item related to Port business, including 

items on the agenda. 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA  
These matters are routine and will be enacted by one motion of the Commission with no 

separate discussion. If discussion is desired, that item may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda by a Commissioner. 

A. Approve October 22nd, 2024 Work Session Minutes  

B. Approve October 22nd, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes  

C. Approve October 2024 Warrants $56,862.23 and $187,639.56 EFT Payments  

 

6. ACTION ITEMS 

A. APPROVE – RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11-20-01 Resolution to Approve Purchase of Materials 
and Installation for Fuel and Stormwater Systems 
 

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

8. FINANCIAL REPORT  

 

9. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 
10. STAFF REPORTS 

 
11. NEXT REGULAR MEETING:  Wednesday December 18th, 2024, at 6:30p.m. Hybrid Village 

Green Community Center 26159 Dulay Rd NE Kingston, WA 98346 
 

12. ADJOURN  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  
 

November 20th, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 
  

 

_________________________________       Attest:___________________________ 
Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner                                                                 Greg Englin, Executive Director 

 

 
_________________________________ 
Steve Heacock, Commissioner 
 
 

_________________________________ 

Mary McClure, Commissioner 

 
 



 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  

October 22, 2024 Regular Session Minutes Page 1 
  

PORT OF KINGSTON 
Regular Session 

October 22nd, 2024 6:30 pm  
Meeting Minutes  

NAME  EMAIL GUESTS 
Greg Englin ☒ grege@portofkingston.org  Mark Libby 
Steve Heacock ☒  steveh@portofkingston.org Tony Hitchman 
Laura Gronnvoll ☒  laurag@portofkingston.org  
Mary McClure ☒ marymc@portofkingston.org  
Audra Trainer ☒ audrat@portofkingston.org   
Kris Williams  ☒ krisw@portofkingston.org   
Torey Grandt ☐ toreyg@portofkingston.org   
Marc Horton ☐ mhorton@washingtonprojectconsultants.com  
    
    

 
1. Call to Order - Commissioner Gronnvoll called the meeting to order at 6:32pm 
  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Motion to approve agenda  
Moved: Commissioner Gronnvoll 
Second: Commissioner McClure 
 
Vote: Pass 3-0 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT –   
Mark Libby asked what is the opportunity for the public to provide input on the Strategic Plan. There was 
no mention of making boating affordable for residents of Kingston in the mission statement. How can the 
Port provide beach access and still achieve economic development goals?  
 
Tony Hitchman strongly believes the Port should focus on economic development rather than parks and 
recreation issues. Tony believes the Port has done a great job contributing to the parks in the area, but 
ultimately parks are a county issue. He discourages the Port from removing the Toth and Hill properties out 
of the economic stream.  

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

mailto:grege@portofkingston.org
mailto:steveh@portofkingston.org
mailto:marymc@portofkingston.org
mailto:audrat@portofkingston.org
mailto:krisw@portofkingston.org
mailto:toreyg@portofkingston.org
mailto:mhorton@washingtonprojectconsultants.com


 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  

October 22, 2024 Regular Session Minutes Page 2 
  

These matters are routine and will be enacted by one motion of the Commission with no separate 
discussion. If discussion is desired, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a 
Commissioner. 
 
 
A. Approve September 10th, 2024 Work Session Meeting Minutes  
B. Approve September 24th, 2024 Work Session Meeting Minutes  
C. Approve September 25th, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes  
D. Approve October 2nd, 2024 Special Session Minutes  
E. Approve October 8th, 2024 Work Session Meeting Minutes  
F. Approve September 2024 Warrants $254,083.09 ($119,957.53 and $134,125.56) and $139,052.23 EFT 
Payments  
 
 
Motion to approve consent agenda  
Moved: Commissioner Gronnvoll 
Second: Commissioner McClure 
 

               Vote: Pass 3-0     

6. ACTION ITEMS  
 

A. APPROVE - RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10-22-01 AMEND CONTRACT WITH WASHINGTON PROJECT 
CONSULTANTS, PLLC. 
Executive Director Englin explained the need to increase the contract amount to complete 
the tasks the Port is currently working on with Marc Horton as the Port Engineer 
throughout the rest of the year.  
Commissioner Gronnvoll commented on the working relationship that ED Englin and Marc 
Horton. While they don’t always agree, they question and challenge each other to work in 
the right direction for the benefit of the Port.  
Commissioner Heacock read resolution into the record.  

 
Motion to approve  
Moved: Commissioner McClure  
Second: Commissioner Gronnvoll 

Vote:    3-0  
 

 

 



 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  

October 22, 2024 Regular Session Minutes Page 3 
  

 

B. APPROVE – RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10-22-02 ADOPT 2024-2030 STRATEGIC PLAN  
ED Englin explained the steps taken to develop the Strategic Plan. We received comments 
via email and in person from community members. This is a living document and is 
adaptable. We will review the plan In the first half of 2026. After this is approved, we will 
develop the annual work plan. In response to community feedback, efforts are underway 
to determine if and how we can improve beach access focusing on inclusivity for all 
visitors. We are working on an ADA audit to assess both compliance and performance. 
Another highlighted interest from the comments was parks. Future plans for these 
properties remain undecided pending the rezone. We are primarily focused on economic 
development. The question for the commission will be,  do we surplus these properties to 
the county or the park district or do we retain them to support the business footprint and 
potential future use? We might revisit the mission, vision, and values when we review the 
Strategic Plan in 2026. We have an opportunity to annex property in the downtown 
Kingston area. We will communicate the steps that it will take to annex said property. In 
the next 12 months, we will conduct an analysis of the Ports real estate assets.   
 
Commissioner Heacock read resolution into the record.  

 
Motion to approve  
Moved: Commissioner McClure  
Second: Commissioner Gronnvoll 

                            Vote:    3-0  
 

 
C. APPROVE– RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10-22-03 AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10-02-04 

ADOPT 2025 COMPREHENSIVE SCHEME OF HARBOR IMPROVEMENTS 
       Commissioner Heacock read resolution into the record.  
 

Motion to approve  
Moved: Commissioner McClure  
Second: Commissioner Gronnvoll  
Vote:    3-0  
 
 
 

7. DISCUSSION 
   



 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  

October 22, 2024 Regular Session Minutes Page 4 
  

8. FINANCIAL REPORT  
Finance Director Trainer reviewed the September Financials 
Cash Reserves - $2,833,288 
LTGO Bond Balance - $605,500  
Net Cash Reserves - $2,227,788 
Fuel – Variance based on Volume  
Guest Moorage – Under budget, ahead of last year Budget occupancy was 71% for Peak, Actual 48% for 
August, 46% for September  
Permanent Moorage – Annual rate increase in February  
Seasonal – Approximately 20-23 slips occupied, budget was 30 
Parking – Budgeted for 60 licensed stall, actual is 91  
Total Operating Revenue - $2.6M  
Gross Profit - $2.1M  
Operating Expense (Promotional and Dues – Funds donated to support the 4th of July Fireworks) 
Total Operating Expense before Depr. - $1.9M  
Net Operating Income - -$280,271  
Net Income - $32,649  
 

9. COMMISSION REPORT  
   

Commissioner McClure – The County and cities are working together to develop Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(ADU) Plans that can “come off the shelf”. This will be very impactful for Kingston.  
KRCC update – Transportation focus in Kitsap County is the Gorst coalition.  
County is beginning to work on a climate change assessment. Navy is partnering with local agencies.   
 
Commissioner Heacock – KCAC meeting (Oct. 9) discussed Citizens on Patrol. Citizens on Patrol are issuing 
parking tickets that can potentially become a lien.  
County Commissioner attended KCAC and announced the Eglon Dept. of Natural Resources property is in 
process for a transfer to Kitsap County.  
Updated KCAC on the adoption of the POK 2025 Budget, Restroom construction, and ADA Assessment.  

 
10. STAFF REPORT 

 

11. ADJOURN  
              Commission adjourned the meeting at 7:35pm  

 
NEXT REGULAR SESSION:  Wednesday November 20th, 2024, at 1:00 PM Village Green Community Center  
 
  

 
_____________________________                                                                   _____________________________ 



 
 

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow. 
  

October 22, 2024 Regular Session Minutes Page 5 
  

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner                                                                           Greg Englin, Executive Director 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Steve Heacock, Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 

 Mary McClure, Commissioner 



 
 
 
 
 

“Serving What Matters Today with a View For Tomorrow.” 

October 22nd, 2024 Special Meeting Agenda  Page 1 
 

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners  

Work Session  
October22nd, 2024, 9:30 – 11:00AM 

 
NAME  GUEST  

Greg Englin ☒ Nancy Langwith ☒ 
Steve Heacock ☒ Mark Ryan ☒ 
Laura Gronnvoll ☒  ☐ 
Mary McClure ☒  ☐ 
Audra Trainer ☐  ☐ 
Kris Williams  ☒  ☐ 
Torey Grandt ☐  ☐ 

 
 

Meeting called by: Port of Kingston Commissioners 
Type of meeting: Work Session  
Location: Village Green Community Center 

 
Welcome to the October 22, 2024 Work Session of the Kingston Port Commission. I’d like to remind 
everyone that this is a working session for the Commission to discuss and review various matters. 
Please note that public comment is not taken during the Work Session. There will be opportunities 
for public input during our regular Commission meeting. We appreciate your understanding and 
cooperation.  
 
This is a preliminary agenda and is subject to  change. 
 

 
Agenda Topics 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – 9:32am  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
3. DISCUSSION   

 
A. Strategic Planning  

 
The 2024-2030 Strategic Plan was discussed.  
 

B. Memorial for Ray Carpenter  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

“Serving What Matters Today with a View For Tomorrow.” 

October 22nd, 2024 Special Meeting Agenda  Page 2 
 

 
 
 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Tuesday October 22nd, 2024 at 6:30p.m. 

 
ADJOURN : 11:34am  
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                  _____________________________ 
Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner      Greg Englin, Executive Director 

 
 

_________________________________ 
Steve Heacock, Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 

 Mary McClure, Commissioner 



I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the services
rendered or the labor performed as described, or that any advance payment is due and payable pursuant to a 
contract or is available as an option for full or partial fulfillment of a contractual obligation, and that the claim is a just, 
due, and unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said 
claim.

Audra Trainer, Finance Director/Port Auditor Date

Date Claimant Amount Purpose Cash 
Transmittal

10/03/2024 Intuit $52,706.93 Payroll R00232591
10/04/2024 Washington State DRS $985.00 DCP R00232649
10/04/2024 PCS Payment Systems $1,428.94 CC Fees - Fuel R00232663
10/04/2024 Gravity Payment Systems $1,923.52 CC Fees - Parking R00232669
10/04/2024 Clearent Payment System $5,722.16 CC-Fees-Office R00232670
10/11/2024 Washington State DOR $462.16 Business License Renewal R00232876
10/16/2024 Washington State DRS $13,482.20 PERS R00233010
10/17/2024 Intuit $45,529.67 Payroll R00233022
10/18/2024 Washington State DRS $1,135.00 DCP R00233056
10/21/2024 Elan Financial Services $2,202.40 Port Credit Cards R00233107
10/28/2024 Washington State Dept of L & I $6,903.30 Quarterly L&I Taxes R00233307
10/28/2024 Washington State DOR $12,000.04 Excise Tax R00233308
10/29/2024 Washington State DOR $43,158.24 Leasehold Taxes R00233352

$187,639.56

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the expenses incurred as described herein and all
claims are just, due, and paid obligations against the Port of Kingston and that I am authorized to authenticate and
certify to said claims.

Audra Trainer, Finance Director/Port Auditor

Voucher Certification and Approval



We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do 
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $18,802.55 from the Port of Kingston, Marina 
Revenue Fund, the 11th day of October 2024.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to
said claim.

 
Audra Trainer, Finance Director

Date Warrant Amount Vendor
10/11/2024 37336 $32.09 A & L Topsoil, Inc
10/11/2024 37337 $32.00 All Shred
10/11/2024 37338 $814.06 Bainbridge Island Electric
10/11/2024 37339 $380.78 Comcast
10/11/2024 37340 $343.98 Crain Pest Control, LLC
10/11/2024 37341 $512.00 CSD Attorneys At Law
10/11/2024 37342 $49.01 Grainger
10/11/2024 37343 $36.18 Greg Englin
10/11/2024 37344 $1,736.92 Henderson Marine Supply, Inc.
10/11/2024 37345 $327.36 Henery Hardware
10/11/2024 37346 $235.77 Kitsap Bank Visa-AT
10/11/2024 37347 $393.99 Kitsap Bank Visa-GE
10/11/2024 37348 $240.00 L&L Port O Potty, Inc
10/11/2024 37349 $2,022.10 Laura Gronnvoll
10/11/2024 37350 $327.00 Mary McClure
10/11/2024 37351 $84.20 Olympic Springs, Inc.
10/11/2024 37352 $43.77 Pape Material Handling
10/11/2024 37353 $112.02 Reddy Ice
10/11/2024 37354 $226.32 S-Net Communications Inc
10/11/2024 37355 $496.57 Seattle Marine & Fishing Supply
10/11/2024 37356 $969.14 Verizon Wireless
10/11/2024 37357 $5,842.50 Washington Project Consultants, PLLC
10/11/2024 37358 $3,544.79 Waste Management

$18,802.55

Warrant List



We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do 
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $56,862.23 from the Port of Kingston, Marina 
Revenue Fund, the 29th day of October 2024.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to
said claim.

 
Audra Trainer, Finance Director

Date Warrant Amount Vendor
10/29/2024 37359 $2,017.96 Washington Commercial Construction
10/29/2024 37360 $2,992.33 Amazon Capital Services
10/29/2024 37361 $575.00 Association Of Washington Business
10/29/2024 37362 $156.16 Central Welding Supply Inc
10/29/2024 37363 $1,291.32 DTG Recycle
10/29/2024 37364 $1,462.00 Fine Edge
10/29/2024 37365 $3,198.04 Kitsap County Public Works
10/29/2024 37366 $28.04 Gannett Washington LocaliQ
10/29/2024 37367 $458.64 Kitsap Towing
10/29/2024 37368 $1,364.08 McMaster-Carr
10/29/2024 37369 $305.76 On IT Networks, Inc
10/29/2024 37370 $2,321.60 Puget Sound Energy
10/29/2024 37371 $28,340.73 Regence Blueshield
10/29/2024 37372 $2,194.70 River City Lights, LLC
10/29/2024 37373 $1,287.00 Sound Publishing, Inc.
10/29/2024 37374 $3,825.25 State Auditor'S Office
10/29/2024 37375 $1,220.86 Swift Plumbing And Heating Inc.
10/29/2024 37376 $831.84 Tanknology
10/29/2024 37377 $2,797.99 Uline
10/29/2024 37378 $192.93 West Marine Pro

$56,862.23

Warrant List



Port of Kingston 
Kitsap County, WA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11-20-1 

 
A Resolution of the Commission of the Port of Kingston 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION FOR FUEL AND 

STORMWATER SYSTEMS 
 

WHEREAS, the Port of Kingston provides fuel to support economic development, tourism, and the marina line of 
business, and infrastructure needs to be brought into compliance, 
 
WHEREAS, the Port of Kingston Commission approved a previous request for purchase of materials and installation 
of the fuel system in the not to exceed amount of $67,000.00, 
 
WHEREAS, the Port of Kingston Commission is being asked to approve an additional amount of $100,964.56 for 
materials and labor to complete both the fuel and the stormwater systems upgrades and relocations, 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commissioners for the Port of Kingston approves purchase of labor and 
materials to maintain the fuel system at the marina and reposition the stormwater system. 
 
Passed by the Board of Commissioners for the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County, Washington at a regular 
meeting held this 20th day of November, 2024. 
 
PORT OF KINGSTON 
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Steve Heacock, Commissioner 

Attest: ___________________________ 
Greg Englin, Executive Director 

_________________________________ 
Mary McClure Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura Gronnvoll, , Commissioner 
















	2024-11-20 Regular Meeting Agenda
	2024-10-22 Regular Session Minutes
	2024-10-22 Work Session Minutes
	Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners
	Work Session
	Welcome to the October 22, 2024 Work Session of the Kingston Port Commission. I’d like to remind everyone that this is a working session for the Commission to discuss and review various matters. Please note that public comment is not taken during the ...

	Agenda Topics
	1. CALL TO ORDER – 9:32am
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. DIscussion


	2024-10 EFT Payments
	2024-10 EFT Payments

	2024-10 Port of Kingston - Warrants
	Warrant List Oct 11
	Warrant List Oct 29

	2024-11-20-01 Resolution to Approve Purchase of Materials and Installationn for Fuel and Stormwater Systems
	2024-10 Financial Statements
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement Year-To-Date

	2024-10 Financial Statements-P&L by Month
	Income Statement Year-To-Date


